
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY 

 
 
SANDEEP R. RAMAKAPETA, on behalf of 
himself and all others similarly situated,  

 
Plaintiffs,  
v.  

 
MARLABS INC; SONA PATEL; SIBY  
VADAKEKKARA; SANJAY 
VIDAYADHARAN;SYSTEM  EFFICIENCY, 
LLC 
  

Defendants.  
 

 
 
 
 
Civil Action No. ____________ 
 
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
 
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
 
  

 
 CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 
 

1. This case involves a scheme by Defendants to defraud Marlabs’ foreign employees 

who receive H-1B visas of wages the federal government requires Marlabs to pay the employees.      

2. Marlabs markets itself as a provider of software and consulting services to 

corporations.  Marlabs recruits potential employees from other countries and promises a three-year 

(or longer) position in the United States to provide professional/consulting services to Marlabs’ 

clients in return for a salary.  Employees who relocate to the United States learn that Marlabs’ 

employment and salary promises are false.  Marlabs has no professional service or consulting work 

for many employees who relocate to the United States.  Marlabs does not pay these employees a 

salary until they themselves find paid professional service or consulting work upon which to work.   

In addition, once an employee’s “client project” ends, Marlabs stops paying the employee until he 

finds another paid project on which to work.  Finally, even during paid client projects, Marlabs fails 

to pay wages that it is required to pay by contract and wage law.              
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3. Marlabs accomplishes its scheme by false and fraudulent representations to the 

federal government.  Marlabs secures H-1B visas from the government for its foreign employees.  

When applying for an H-1B visa, the federal government requires Marlabs to certify that it will pay 

a foreign employee a “prevailing wage,” including a salary for nonproductive periods of time in 

which Marlabs does not have paid client projects.  This required certification is designed to prevent 

(a) schemes such as Marlabs’ scheme (e.g., luring foreigners to the U.S. so they must search, 

unpaid, for third-party work for Marlabs’ benefit) and (b) an influx of cheap foreign labor for 

professional services.  Marlabs’ scheme violates its H-1B certifications to the government and 

validates a Department of Homeland Security report documenting fraudulent practices among H-1B 

employers.  See United States Department of Homeland Security, “H-1B Benefit Fraud & 

Compliance Assessment,” p. 8 (Sept. 2008). 

4. Marlabs solicits the assistance of third party vendors – such as System Efficiency –  

to serve as intermediaries and help find paid work for Marlabs’ employees.  As discussed below, in 

return for a profit, System Efficiency knowingly assisted Marlabs in perpetrating its scheme to 

underpay and defraud Plaintiff. 

5.  Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of himself and a class of Marlabs H-1B 

employees who were not paid required wages.  On behalf of the class, Plaintiff seeks damages for 

the underpayment of wages.    

The Parties 

6. Plaintiff Sandeep R. Ramakapeta is a citizen of India, and currently resides in 

Rochester, NY.  Mr. Ramakapeta holds a bachelor’s degree in Computer Science from MK 

University in India, and a Master’s degree in Computer Science from Latrobe University in 
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Australia.  Prior to his employment with Marlabs, Mr. Ramakapeta had 2.5 years of experience 

as a computer programmer/analyst.   

7. Defendant Marlabs Inc. is a Virginia corporation with its principal place of 

business at One Corporate Place South, Piscataway, New Jersey 08854.  Marlabs is a rapidly 

growing company with over $110 million in annual revenues, over 1,500 employees, and offices 

in the United States, Canada, and India. 

8. Defendant Sona Patel is Marlabs’ associate general counsel.  Ms. Patel is 

responsible for making various false representations and attestations to federal authorities in 

connection with H-1B visa applications on behalf of Marlabs’ H-1B workers. 

9. Defendant Siby Vadakekkara, is Marlabs’ Chief Executive Officer.  Mr. 

Vadakekkara is responsible for directing the operations of Marlabs, including the fraudulent 

scheme alleged in this Complaint. 

10. Defendant Sanjay Vidyadharan is Marlabs’ general counsel.  Mr. Vidyadharan is 

responsible for making various false representations and attestations to federal authorities in 

connection with H-1B visa applications on behalf of Marlabs’ H-1B workers. 

11. Defendant System Efficiency, LLC is a limited liability company with its 

principal place of business at 1632 East Parham Road, Richmond, VA 23228.  System Efficiency 

markets itself as a consulting company with a range of services that includes project planning, 

technology optimization, implementation, upgrades, infrastructure and security, for 

manufacturing and distribution, supply chain, financial, human resources and customer service 

systems. 
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Jurisdiction, Venue and Interstate Commerce 

12. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1964 (RICO).  

The Court also has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 (federal question) 

because certain claims in this action arise under 18 U.S.C. § 1589 (forced labor), 18 U.S.C. § 

1590 (trafficking with respect to forced labor), and 18 U.S.C. §§ 1961-1968 (RICO).  

Jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s claims under 18 U.S.C. § 1589 (forced labor), and 18 U.S.C. § 1590 

(trafficking with respect forced labor) is further conferred upon this Court pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 

§ 1595(a).  This Court also has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332 (diversity jurisdiction), 

because this action is brought as a class action, diversity of citizenship exists between the parties, 

and the aggregate amount in controversy exceeds the sum or value of $5,000,000, exclusive of 

interest and costs.  Jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s claims under New Jersey law are appropriate 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367. 

13. Venue in this District is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 and 18 U.S.C. § 

1965(a), in that Defendants (either currently or during the relevant time period of this Complaint) 

inhabit, transact business, reside, are found, or have an agent in this district; a significant portion 

of the affected interstate trade and commerce described below has been carried out in this 

District; and a substantial part of the events giving rise to Plaintiff’s claims occurred in this 

District. 

14. Defendants’ fraudulent activities were within the flow of and had a proximate, 

direct, substantial, and reasonably foreseeable effect on interstate commerce. 

15. Relief is sought against Defendants as well as their employees, agents, assistants, 

and successors. 

 

4 
 

Case 2:10-cv-04650-DMC-JAD   Document 1   Filed 09/10/10   Page 4 of 40 PageID: 4



Factual Allegations 

H-1B Visa Program Background 

16. Under the Immigration and Nationality Act, a United States employer can petition 

the federal government to allow a foreign national to work in the United States as an H-1B 

nonimmigrant worker.  An H-1B worker performs services in a specialty occupation – e.g., an 

occupation that requires a bachelor’s or higher degree (or its equivalent).  Examples of H-1B 

specialty occupations include computer professionals, engineers, accountants, management 

consultants, scientists, researchers, professors, and attorneys. 

17. H-1B sponsor employers are required to pay their H-1B employees the higher of 

(a) actual wages the employer pays co-workers in related positions or (b) a prevailing wage for 

the specialty, as determined by an independent survey of wages paid to workers similarly 

employed in the geographic area of intended employment. See 20 C.F.R. § 655.731(b).  For 

salaried employees, salaries are due in prorated installments (e.g., annual salary divided into 26 

bi-weekly pay periods, where employer pays bi-weekly) paid no less often than monthly.  Id. § 

655.731(c)(4).  These wage requirements are designed to prevent (a) schemes such as Marlabs 

(e.g., luring foreigners to the U.S. so they must search, unpaid, for third-party work for Marlabs’ 

benefit) and (b) the influx of cheap foreign labor for professional services.         

18. In order to receive an H-1B nonimmigrant classification from the federal 

government and employ H-1B workers, employers must complete a Labor Condition Application 

(“LCA”).  An LCA requires an employer to identify an H-1B employee’s job, geographic 

location, and specific wage.  The LCA also requires the employer to certify that it will pay an H-

1B employee for “non-productive time” – e.g., periods of time in which an H-1B employee is not 

assigned to a paid client project because the employer has no paid consulting work for him to do.  
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The industry refers to periods of non-productive time as an H-1B employee being “benched” or 

“put on the bench.”  Benching is described in a Department of Homeland Security report on H-

1B fraud: 

“Benching” occurs when an employer temporarily decides to place 
a beneficiary in nonproductive status without pay, or with reduced 
pay, during periods of no work.  It should be noted that even H-1B 
workers without a current work assignment (i.e., benched) must be 
paid the prevailing wage. 
 

See United States Department of Homeland Security, “H-1B Benefit Fraud & Compliance 

Assessment,” p. 8 (Sept. 2008).    

19. H-1B employers must file a new LCA if the geographic location of an H-1B 

employee’s job changes.  Different geographic locations have different prevailing wages.     

20. An H-1B visa is valid only as long as an employer who petitioned the government 

for an H-1B visa employs the H-1B employee.  If the H-1B employer terminates the employee, 

the employee loses his immigration status.  The employee typically has to return to his home 

country unless another employer receives an H-1B visa for the employee on or about the time the 

employee is terminated.  

Federal Government Concerns Regarding H-1B Employment Fraud     

21. The Department of Homeland Security conducted a study of the H-1B visa 

program, and based on a sampling of H-1B employers, found that some employers were 

committing fraud by not paying employees (a) prevailing wages in the geographic locations in 

which employees worked and (b) for benched time.  Id. 

22. Following the Department of Homeland Security report, Senator Grassley 

expressed concern about “substantial fraud” among H-1B employers: 

We have seen substantial fraud and program violations by 
employers who bring in H-1B visa holders and then outsource 
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them to other worksites.  Such as the case with the indictment of 
Vision Systems Group, Inc. earlier this year in my home state.  
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement alleges that the 
company did not have jobs available for the H-1B workers they 
petitioned for, and placed them in non-pay status upon arrival in 
the United States. 
 

Sept. 29, 2009 Letter from Sen. Grassley to A. Mayorkas, available at 

http://grassley.senate.gov/news/Article.cfm?customel_dataPageID_1502=23410.  

23. Senator Grassley also expressed concern that H-1B fraud must be prosecuted and 

that “[e]mployers need to be held accountable so that foreign workers are not flooding the 

market, depressing wages, and taking jobs from qualified Americans[.]”  See Sept. 29, 2009 

Press Release, Grassley Works to Ensure Accountability in H-1B Visa Program, available at 

http://grassley.senate.gov/news/Article.cfm?customel_dataPageID_1502=23410. 

Defendants’ H-1B Fraudulent Scheme     

24. Marlabs employs over 1,000 H-1B employees.  Marlabs actively recruits potential 

H-1B employees in India and other countries.  Marlabs promises potential employees that 

Marlabs will pay a specific salary if a potential employee relocates to the United States.  Marlabs 

petitions the federal government for an H-1B visa for potential employees.  In petitioning the 

government, Marlabs certifies that it will abide by H-1B wage requirements – i.e., that Marlabs 

will pay employees (a) the higher of the actual or prevailing wage and (b) for non-productive, 

“benched” time.     

25. Marlabs enters into employment contracts with H-1B employees.  Under these 

contracts, Marlabs can terminate employees at any time and for any reason.  The contracts provide 

that, if terminated, the H-1B employees cannot work or consult for any competitor, business partner, 

client, or potential client (i.e., any person or organization that could hire Marlabs) for a period of 

twelve months.    
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26. H-1B employees who accept positions with Marlabs often face a stark reality:  

Marlabs does not pay employees until they find paid consulting projects/work.  Many employees 

arrive in the United States and find that they must steer consulting work to Marlabs before getting 

paid. In addition, employees who find consulting work often experience substantial periods of 

“benching” for no pay in the gap periods between third-party consulting projects.     

27. Plaintiff Ramakapeta’s experience is representative of Defendants’ fraudulent 

scheme.    

28. On July 24, 2006, Marlabs’ Associate Counsel Sona Patel on behalf Marlabs sent via 

interstate wire an LCA to the Department of Labor to secure an H-1B approval for Mr. Ramakapeta.  

See Exhibit 1, incorporated here by reference.  Ms. Patel also sent via interstate wires or U.S. mail 

this LCA to the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services agency. Ms. Patel’s LCA for Mr. 

Ramakapeta represented that Mr. Ramakapeta had a job as a Programmer/Analyst in Marlabs’ 

Allentown, Pennsylvania division and would be paid a salary with a range of $60,000 up to $90,000 

per year.  Ms. Patel also represented that the “period of employment” would encompass July 25, 

2006 through July 25, 2009.  Ms. Patel attested that Marlabs would pay Mr. Ramakapeta for 

nonproductive/benched time.  Ms. Patel personally certified that all statements in the LCA were 

“true and accurate.”  These representations were false and fraudulent.  Marlabs had no job for Mr. 

Ramakapeta in Allentown and had no intention to pay wages for nonproductive/benched time, 

consistent with its existing practices for H-1B workers. 

29. On August 20, 2006 – after Marlabs had a secured H-1B status for Mr. Ramakapeta 

– Marlabs’ General Counsel Sanjay Vidyadharan sent Mr. Ramakapeta an Offer of Employment for 

a job as a Programmer/Analyst in Marlabs’ Edison, NJ office for a salary of $55,000 per year plus 
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bonuses.  See Exhibit 2, incorporated here by reference.  Mr. Ramakapeta accepted this Offer of 

Employment and started at Marlabs on September 19, 2006. 

30. From September 19, 2006 through December 30, 2006, Mr. Ramakapeta worked on 

a project for an end client, Prudential, in Iselin, New Jersey.  The project finished at the end of 2006.  

Starting on January 1, 2007, Mr. Ramakapeta did not have a client project upon which to work.  

Marlabs instructed Mr. Ramakapeta to find paid work on his own, through head hunters, or through 

other third parties.  Marlabs also informed Mr. Ramakapeta that it would not pay him during this 

nonproductive/benched time. 

31. Because Marlabs was aware that it was contrary to law not to pay Mr. Ramakapeta 

for benched time, in February 2007, Mani Kurup of Marlabs demanded in a phone call that Mr. 

Ramakapeta submit via e-mail a false request to take a voluntary, unpaid leave retroactive to 

January 2, 2007, and continuing until March 15, 2007.  Mr. Kurup threatened to cancel Mr. 

Ramakapeta’s visa unless he submitted this false request and – during his “voluntary leave” – 

agreed to continue to search for client projects for Marlabs without pay.  Mr. Ramakapeta complied 

with Mr. Kurup’s demand.  On February 26, 2007 at 8:00 p.m., Mr. Ramakapeta sent an e-mail to 

Mr. Kurup stating that he was requesting unpaid leave from January 2 to March 15, 2007.         

32. With the help of System Efficiency, Mr. Ramakapeta ultimately secured a paid 

project with Bausch and Lomb.  On April 24, 2007, Marlabs sent via interstate wires or U.S. mail 

another LCA to the Department of Labor in which Mr. Vidyadharen personally certified that Mr. 

Ramakapeta had a new job at Marlabs (extending through April 2010) and that Marlabs would pay 

Mr. Ramakapeta for benched time.  See Exhibit 3, incorporated here by reference.   As discussed 

below, Marlabs had no intention of paying Mr. Ramakapeta for benched time, and Mr. 

Vidyadharen’s certification on behalf of Marlabs was false and fraudulent. 
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33. In return for its help in finding paid work for Mr. Ramakapeta, System Efficiency 

and Marlabs agreed to split the wages Mr. Ramakapeta earned from Bausch and Lomb (estimated at 

$100 an hour).  System Efficiency would be paid $25 an hour, and would remit $75 an hour to 

Marlabs.  Under Marlabs’ employment agreement with Mr. Ramakapeta, Marlabs was required to 

pay Mr. Ramakapeta 75 percent of the $75 an hour – i.e. an actual wage of $56.25 an hour. 

34. Marlabs initially informed Mr. Ramakapeta that it would receive from System 

Efficiency $75 an hour, meaning that Mr. Ramakapeta would be paid $56.25 an hour.  But then 

Marlabs informed Mr. Ramakapeta that System Efficiency was lowering its payment to Marlabs 

and would pay Marlabs only $70 an hour, meaning that Mr. Ramakapeta would be paid less.  Two 

Marlabs employees – Mr. Bose and Mr. Kurup – encouraged Mr. Ramakapeta to call Robert 

Kaufman at System Efficiency to confirm that System Efficiency would be paying Marlabs less.  

On April 13, 2007, Mr. Ramakapeta (located in Edison, NJ) made an interstate phone call to Mr. 

Kaufman (located in Richmond, VA) to confirm that System Efficiency was paying Marlabs $70 an 

hour rather than $75.  Mr. Kaufman confirmed on the interstate call the $70 an hour rate, which 

proved to be false and fraudulent.         

35. Mr. Ramakapeta started the Bausch and Lomb project on April 16, 2007.  Marlabs 

again started to pay Mr. Ramakapeta, but based on the lower $70 an hour rate as opposed to $75 an 

hour.  Payment to Mr. Ramakapeta occurred as follows:  System Efficiency would create an 

extension purchase order every three months reflecting that they were paying Marlabs $75 an hour 

for Mr. Ramakapeta’s work at Bausch & Lomb.  (System Efficiency would also send payments to 

Marlabs.)  System Efficiency in Virginia would send each purchase order to Marlabs in New Jersey 

as a Microsoft Word document knowing, upon information and belief, that Marlabs would then alter 
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the $75 an hour rate to $70 before sending the purchase order to Mr. Ramakapeta.  Marlabs would 

then alter the purchase order and send it from New Jersey to Mr. Ramakapeta in New York.   

36. On May 23, 2008, Mr. Ramakapeta discovered Marlabs and System Efficiency’s 

fraudulent practice when a new System Efficiency employee named Alicia Bearden inadvertently 

sent the next extension  purchase order to Mr. Ramakapeta (in Microsoft Word format) that 

reflected that System Efficiency was paying Marlabs $75 an hour for Mr. Ramakapeta’s work at 

Bausch and Lomb.  Mr. Ramakapeta called Ms. Bearden, and she confirmed by phone the $75 an 

hour payment.  Upon confronting Marlabs about the year-long fabrication of the rate System 

Efficiency was paying Marlabs for Mr. Ramakapeta’s work, Marlabs remitted to Mr. Ramakapeta 

the amount Marlabs should have paid Mr. Ramakapeta based on a $75 an hour payment from 

System Efficiency, but Marlabs did not pay any interest on the amount Marlabs and System 

Efficiency illegally withheld from Mr. Ramakapeta. 

37. Separate and apart from Marlabs and System Efficiency’s fabrication of the amount 

owed to Mr. Ramakapeta, Mr. Ramakapeta was also underpaid for his work at Bausch and Lomb in 

part because of System Efficiency’s failure to timely pay Marlabs.  While Marlabs contractually 

agreed to pay Mr. Ramakapeta 75 percent of what System Efficiency paid Marlabs, Marlabs would 

pay – on a monthly prorated basis – a base salary equal to $60,000 per year.  It would then distribute 

to Mr. Ramakapeta quarterly payments that reflected the amounts Mr. Ramakapeta was owed above 

and beyond the prorated portion of his $60,000 base salary.  From October 2008 through June 2009, 

Marlabs did not pay Mr. Ramakapeta any quarterly payments even though Mr. Ramakapeta was 

owed the payments.   

38. Marlabs informed Mr. Ramakapeta and System Efficiency that Marlabs would not 

pay Mr. Ramakapeta any quarterly payment if System Efficiency delayed paying Marlabs.  
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Specifically, management of System Efficiency (specifically, its Client Relationship Manager Bob 

Braden, Jr., Office Manager Kacie Moore, manager Lynn Kaufman, Managing Director Lorne 

Kaufman and Staffing Coordinator Deana Machenberg) and Marlabs (Sr. Program Manager of 

Strategic Consulting Haridas Koman, Sr. Resource Executive Seema Adhangale and Finance 

employee Gayathri Krishna) exchanged many emails during the years 2008 and 2009 that indicated 

Mr. Ramakapeta was not being paid his required wages for work performed over the course of 

several months.  Emails as to these unpaid wages were exchanged between Marlabs, Mr. 

Ramakapeta and/or System Efficiency on December 24, 2008, and in the year 2009 on January 21, 

February 11, 12, 17, 19, May 6, and June 9, 12, and 22, 2009.  System Efficiency and Marlabs 

communicated about the fact that wages had not been paid to Mr. Ramakapeta because System 

Efficiency was late paying Marlabs money that System Efficiency had received from Bausch and 

Lomb for Mr. Ramakapeta’s computer consulting work.  The failure to pay Mr. Ramakapeta’s 

wages violated several wage laws referenced herein.    

39. On June 22, 2009, Lynn Kaufman of System Efficiency sent an email to Mr. 

Ramakapeta, Mr. Braden (Client Relationship Manager of System Efficiency), Lorne Kaufman 

(System Efficiency’s Managing Director), and Haridas Koman (Marlabs’ Sr. Program Manager of 

Strategic Consulting) that stated the following as to why System Efficiency kept the revenues 

secured as a result of Mr. Ramakapeta’s work at Bausch and Lomb: 

 Sandeep, 

I apologize. I have received no phone messages from you. I do not 
understand why Marlabs is withholding your payment, but I also do 
not understand why your agreement with them is to only receive 
your payment after they have been paid. We have paid 
approximately $48,000 to Marlabs between October 6, 2008 and the 
end of May 2009. 
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We are not a large company with big monthly turnovers and the 
amount we have paid/still owe to Marlabs is substantial for us as 
well. We sustained the loss of two large contracts because those 
companies fell into bankruptcy earlier this year. We are still trying to 
recover from those losses. In addition, last year and this year have 
been very difficult for us since the economy has caused clients to 
postpone projects or reduce budgets. Even revenue that we have 
contracts for has been reduced by clients because their budgets are 
being cut. 

 
We are working to get all of our vendors paid as quickly as possible. 
I am very sorry this has impacted you in the way it has. We are 
trying to get further payment to Marlabs as money comes to us. 

 
 Kind regards, 
 
 Lynn 
 
Mr. Ramakapeta was never paid the unpaid wages, referenced in the email above, even though the 

revenues described above were earned by Mr. Ramakapeta.    

40. In June 2009, Mr. Ramakapeta informed Marlabs that the Bausch and Lomb project 

would end on June 30.  He promptly received calls from Mr. Kurup and another Marlabs employee 

named Seema, asking Mr. Ramakapeta to again send Marlabs a false request for an unpaid leave of 

absence from June 30 until further notice. Mr. Kurup also threatened to have Mr Ramakapeta’s H-

1B visa revoked if Mr. Ramakapeta did not abide by Marlabs’ demand.  Mr. Ramakapeta refused to 

abide by Marlabs’ demand and, rather than face another extended period of unpaid bench time, 

ended his employment with Marlabs.    

41. Prior to placing Mr. Ramakapeta at Bausch and Lomb, System Efficiency had 

worked “many times” with Marlabs to place H-1B workers.  Having worked “many times” with 

Marlabs to place H-1B workers, System Efficiency – upon information and belief – was aware of 

H-1B wage requirements, including the laws requiring payment of the actual wage or prevailing 

wage (whichever is higher) on at least a monthly basis.  In violation of H-1B wage requirements, 
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System Efficiency nonetheless delayed payment to Marlabs, knowing that Marlabs would not pay 

Mr. Ramakapeta required wages. 

42. During Mr. Ramakapeta’s employment with Marlabs, System Efficiency profited 

from and furthered Marlabs’ fraudulent scheme:  in return for sharing profits with Marlabs, System 

Efficiency knowingly assisted in the underpayment of wages to Mr. Ramakapeta in violation of 

state and federal laws.  

43. Moreover, because System Efficiency was an entity that was paid to serve as an 

intermediary between Marlabs and third-party project employers, and – upon information and belief 

– System Efficiency knew of wage law requirements applicable to workers (including H-1B 

workers), System Efficiency benefited financially from participation in Marlabs’ scheme knowing 

that the scheme constituted an abuse of legal process and was otherwise illegal. 

44. System Efficiency has acted knowing, or in reckless disregard, of the fact that its 

venture with Marlabs has engaged in the providing of labor or services by any of the means above.  

18 U.S.C. § 1589(b). 

45. In violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1590, System Efficiency knowingly recruited and 

obtained Mr. Ramakapeta to perform services, where he was subjected to violations of 18 U.S.C. § 

1589, as described above. 

Class Action Allegations 

46. Plaintiff brings this action, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23, on behalf of a class of:  
 
H-1B visa holders, who worked for and were underpaid by 
Defendant Marlabs from four years prior to the date of the filing of 
this Complaint through the present, and continuing until the 
Defendants’ unlawful conduct ceases (the “Class Period”).  
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47. Excluded from the class are the Court and its officers, employees and relatives, 

Defendants and their parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, employees and co-conspirators, and 

government entities. 

48. Members of the class are so numerous and geographically dispersed that joinder is 

impracticable.  While the exact number of class members is unknown to Plaintiff, it is believed 

to be in the hundreds or thousands.  Members of the class are readily identifiable from 

information and records in possession of the Defendants.  Marlabs is required by law to maintain 

copies of its H-1B workers’ LCAs (which indicate identifying information about the H-1B 

workers, and attestations about work and wages as referenced above), and their payroll records 

(which indicate payment of wages and lack thereof). 

49. Questions of law and fact common to members of the class predominate over 

questions, if any, that may affect only individual class members because Defendants have acted 

on grounds generally applicable to the class.  Such generally applicable conduct is inherent in 

Defendants’ wrongful conduct.  Common questions of law or fact include, but are not limited to: 

a. Whether Defendants engaged, and/or conspired to engage, in a scheme to 
defraud Marlabs’ H-1B employees by underpaying required wages; 
 

b. Whether Defendants’ conduct violates the Federal Racketeer Influenced and 
Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO), 18 U.S.C. § 1962; 

 
c. Whether Defendants obtained labor of class members by abuse of H-1B law or 

legal process, by threatened abuse of law or legal process, by serious harm and 
by threats of serious harm, and thereby violated 18 U.S.C. §§ 1589, 1590; 

 
d. Whether Defendants’ conduct and failures to pay Plaintiff his full required 

wages violates New Jersey State wage law and breach of contract law; 
 

e. Whether Plaintiff and other class members have sustained or continue to 
sustain damages as a result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct, and, if so, the 
proper measure and appropriate formula to be applied in determining such 
damages;  
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f. Whether Plaintiff and the other class members are entitled to an award of 
compensatory, treble, and/or punitive damages, and, if so, in what amount; and 

 
g. Whether Plaintiff and the other class members are entitled to injunctive or 

other equitable relief. 
 

50. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the class.  Plaintiff 

and all members of the class were damaged by the same wrongful conduct by the Defendants, 

i.e., they all have been underpaid for employment services as a result of Defendants’ fraudulent 

and wrongful conduct. 

51. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of other class members 

because he has no interest that is antagonistic to or which conflicts with those of any other class 

member, and Plaintiff is committed to the vigorous prosecution of this action and has retained 

competent counsel experienced in litigation of this nature to represent Plaintiff and other 

members of the class. 

52. The prosecution of separate actions by individual members of the class would 

create the risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual members of the 

class, which could establish incompatible standards of conduct for Defendants.  

53. This class action is the superior method for the fair and efficient adjudication of 

this controversy.  Class treatment will permit a large number of similarly-situated individuals to 

prosecute their claims in a single forum simultaneously, efficiently and without the unnecessary 

duplication of evidence, effort and expense that numerous individual actions would produce.  

The damages sustained by individual class members, although substantial, do not rise to the level 

where they would have a significant interest in controlling the prosecution of separate actions 

against these well-financed Defendants. 
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54. This case will be eminently manageable as a class action.  Plaintiff knows of no 

difficulty to be encountered in the maintenance of this action that would preclude its 

maintenance as a class action. 

CAUSES OF ACTION 

COUNT I – VIOLATION OF THE RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND 
CORRUPT ORGANIZATION ACT (“RICO”), 18 U.S.C. § 1962(C) 

 
(against all Defendants) 

 
55. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 – 54 by reference as if fully forth herein.   

56. Title 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c) of RICO prohibits “any person employed by or 

associated with any enterprise . . . to conduct or participate . . . in the conduct of such 

enterprise’s affairs through a pattern of racketeering activity . . . .” 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c). 

57. At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendants each constituted a “person” 

within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961(3) and 1964(c). 

58. Defendants were associated in fact and constituted – and continue to constitute – 

an “enterprise” within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961(4), engaging in and affecting interstate 

commerce.  At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendants agreed to and did conduct and 

directly or indirectly participate in, or aided and abetted, the conduct of the enterprise’s affairs 

through a pattern of racketeering activity in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c), including (a) false 

and fraudulent representations to the federal government; (b) false and fraudulent representations 

to Plaintiff; (c) underpayment of Plaintiff’s wages in violation of federal law; (d) immigration 

document falsifications in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1546; (e) interstate mail fraud in violation of 

18 U.S.C. § 1341; (f) interstate wire fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1343; (g) forced labor in 

violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1589; and (h) trafficking with respect to forced labor in violation of 18 
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U.S.C. § 1590.  These violations included, but are not limited to, the acts discussed in the prior 

paragraphs of this Complaint and in paragraphs 65 to 67 below. 

59. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ racketeering activities and 

violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c), Plaintiff has been injured in his business and property in an 

amount to be proven at trial.  For example, Plaintiff suffered from lost wages, bonuses, and 

benefits, and incurred other incidental and consequential damages and expenses as a result of the 

Count I Defendants’ acts. 

 

COUNT II - VIOLATION OF RICO, 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d) (RICO CONSPIRACY) 
 

(against all Defendants) 
  

60. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 – 59 by reference as if fully forth herein. 

61. As set forth above, Defendants unlawfully and willfully combined, conspired and 

agreed to violate 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c).  Specifically, Defendants committed overt acts in 

furtherance of the conspiracy as described above. 

62. Defendants have intentionally conspired and agreed to directly and indirectly 

participate in the conduct of the affairs of the enterprise through a pattern of racketeering 

activity.  Defendants knew that their acts were part of a pattern of racketeering activity and 

agreed to the commission of those acts to further the schemes described above. That conduct 

constitutes a conspiracy to violate 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c), in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d). 

63. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ conspiracy, the overt acts taken in 

furtherance of that conspiracy, and violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d), Plaintiff has been injured 

in his business and property in an amount to be proven at trial by reason of Defendants’ violation 

of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d).  For example, Plaintiff suffered from lost wages, bonuses, and benefits, 
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and incurred other incidental and consequential damages and expenses as a result of Defendants’ 

acts. 

COUNT III - VIOLATIONS OF 18 U.S.C. §§ 1589-1590, 1595 (FORCED LABOR AND 
TRAFFICKING WITH RESPECT TO FORCED LABOR) 

 
(against all Defendants) 

 
64. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 – 63 by reference as if fully set forth herein.  

65.  Defendants violated 18 U.S.C. § 1589(a) by knowingly obtaining and providing 

the labor and services of Plaintiff and class members by means of the abuse or threatened abuse 

of law or legal process.  Defendants violated 18 U.S.C. § 1589(a) by knowingly obtaining and 

providing the labor and services of Plaintiff and class members by means of serious harm or 

threats of serious harm. 

66. Defendants violated 18 U.S.C. § 1589(b) by knowingly benefiting, financially or 

by receiving anything of value, from participation in a venture which has engaged in the providing 

or obtaining of labor or services by any of the means described in 18 U.S.C. § 1589(a), knowing or 

in reckless disregard of the fact that the venture has engaged in the providing or obtaining of labor 

or services by any of such means. 

67. Defendants violated 18 U.S.C. § 1590 by knowingly recruiting, providing, or 

obtaining any person for labor or services in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1589. 

COUNT IV – VIOLATION OF THE NEW JERSEY RACKETEER INFLUENCED 
AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATION ACT (“NEW JERSEY RICO”), N.J. STAT. § 

2C:41-2(C) 
 

(against all Defendants) 
 
68. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 – 67 by reference as if fully forth herein.   
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69. New Jersey RICO prohibits “any person employed by or associated with any 

enterprise . . . to conduct or participate . . . in the conduct of such enterprise’s affairs through a 

pattern of racketeering activity . . . .”  N.J. Stat. § 2C:41-2(c). 

70. At all times relevant to this Complaint, the Defendants each constituted a 

“person” within the meaning of N.J. Stat. § 2C:41-1(b). 

71. Defendants were associated in fact and constituted – and continue to constitute – 

an “enterprise” within the meaning of N.J. Stat. § 2C:41-1(c).  At all times relevant to this 

Complaint, Defendants agreed to and did conduct and directly or indirectly participate in, or 

aided and abetted, the conduct of the enterprise’s affairs through a pattern of racketeering 

activity in violation of N.J. Stat. § 2C:41-2(c), including (a) false and fraudulent representations 

to the federal government; (b) false and fraudulent representations to the Plaintiff; (c) 

underpayment of Plaintiff’s wages in violation of federal law; (d) immigration document 

falsifications in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1546; (e) interstate mail fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. 

§ 1341; (f) interstate wire fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1343; (g) forced labor in violation of 

18 U.S.C. § 1589(a); and (h) trafficking with respect to forced labor in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 

1590.  These violations included, but are not limited to, the acts discussed in the prior paragraphs 

of this Complaint. 

72. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ racketeering activities and 

violations of N.J. Stat. § 2C:41-2(c), Plaintiff has been injured in his business and property in an 

amount to be proven at trial.  For example, Plaintiff suffered from lost wages, bonuses, and 

benefits, and incurred other incidental and consequential damages and expenses as a result of 

Defendants’ acts. 
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COUNT V - VIOLATION OF NEW JERSEY RICO, N.J. STAT. § 2C:41-2(D) (RICO 
CONSPIRACY) 

 
(against all Defendants) 

  
73. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 – 72 by reference as if fully forth herein . 

74. As set forth above, the Defendants unlawfully and willfully combined, conspired 

and agreed to violate N.J. Stat. § 2C:41-2(c).  Specifically, Defendants committed overt acts in 

furtherance of the conspiracy as described above. 

75. Defendants have intentionally conspired and agreed to directly and indirectly 

participate in the conduct of the affairs of the enterprise through a pattern of racketeering 

activity.  Defendants knew that their acts were part of a pattern of racketeering activity and 

agreed to the commission of those acts to further the schemes described above. That conduct 

constitutes a conspiracy to violate N.J. Stat. § 2C:41-2(c), in violation of N.J. Stat. § 2C:41-2(d). 

As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ conspiracy, the overt acts taken in furtherance of 

that conspiracy, and violations of N.J. Stat. § 2C:41-2(d), Plaintiff has been injured in his 

business and property in an amount to be proven at trial by reason of Defendants’ violation of 

N.J. Stat. § 2C:41-2(d).  For example, Plaintiff suffered from lost wages, bonuses, and benefits, 

and incurred other incidental and consequential damages and expenses as a result of Defendants’ 

acts. 

COUNT VI- VIOLATIONS OF NEW JERSEY STATUTORY WAGE LAW 

(against all Defendants except System Efficiency, LLC) 

76. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 – 75 by reference as if fully set forth herein.  

Plaintiff advances Count VI against Defendants Marlabs, Ms. Patel, Mr. Vadakekkara, and Mr. 

Vidayadharan (collectively the “Count VI Defendants”). 
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77. The Count VI Defendants’ failure to pay Plaintiff his full wages violated New 

Jersey statutory wage law, including but not limited to N.J. Stat. 34:11-4.2. 

78. The non-corporate Count VI Defendants are officers of a corporation and/or agents 

with management responsibilities at Marlabs, and as such are deemed to be the employers of the 

employees of the corporation. N.J. Stat. 34:11-4.1(a).  

79. Plaintiff suffered from lost wages, bonuses, and benefits, and incurred other 

incidental and consequential damages and expenses as a result of the Count IV Defendants’ acts. 

COUNT VII- BREACH OF CONTRACT UNDER NEW JERSEY COMMON LAW 

(against Marlabs) 

80. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 – 79 by reference as if fully set forth herein.  

Plaintiff advances Count VII against Marlabs. 

81. Marlabs’ failure to pay Plaintiff his full wages as promised in and required by their 

contract was in breach of contract under New Jersey common law. 

82. Plaintiff suffered from lost wages, bonuses, and benefits, and incurred other 

incidental and consequential damages and expenses as a result of Marlabs’ acts. 

JURY TRIAL DEMAND 
 

83. Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 38(b), Plaintiff, on his own behalf and on behalf of the 

class, demand a trial by jury of all claims asserted in this Complaint so triable. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF  

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests entry of judgment against Defendants, jointly and 

severally:  

a. Certifying that this action may be maintained as a class action under Rule 

23(b)(2) and (b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, appointing Plaintiff as class 
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representative and his counsel as lead class counsel; 

b. Directing that reasonable notice of this action, as provided by Rule 23(c)(2) of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure be given to members of the Class; 

c. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class their full monetary damages to be proven at trial; 

d. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class their unpaid wages, as well as liquidated 

damages, interest, and all civil remedies available under New Jersey statutory law and common 

law; 

e. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class treble their monetary damages, pursuant to 18 

U.S.C. § 1964; 

f. Awarding all civil remedies under 18 U.S.C. § 1593 (mandatory restitution) to be 

paid in addition to any other civil penalties authorized by law; 

g. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class pre-and post-judgment interest on their damages;  

h. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class the costs of this action and reasonable attorneys’ 

fees pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §§ 1595, 1964 and New Jersey statutory law and common law;  

i. Enjoining Defendants from continuing or resuming their unlawful and 

anticompetitive  practices;  

j. Awarding all other legal or equitable relief as appropriate to effectuate the 

purposes of the New Jersey wage statutes as referenced above; and 

k. Awarding Plaintiff and the Class such other and further relief as the Court deems 

just and proper. 
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Dated:  September 10, 2010         

 THE SALVO LAW FIRM, P.C. 
 165 Passaic Avenue, Suite 310 
 Fairfield, NJ   07004 
 (973) 233-4080 
 (973) 900-8800 (fax)  
 csalvo@salvolawfirm.com 
 
 Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

      By:  /s/ Cindy D. Salvo 
        CINDY D. SALVO (CS 8533) 
 

 
 
Daniel A. Kotchen     
Daniel L. Low 
Robert Klinck 
Alicia Gutierrez  
Kotchen & Low LLP 
2300 M Street, NW 
Suite 800 
Washington, D.C.  20037 
(202) 416-1848 
(202) 280-1128 (fax) 
dkotchen@kotchen.com 
dlow@kotchen.com 
 
Michael F. Brown 
Peterson, Berk & Cross, S.C. 
200 E. College Ave. 
Appleton, WI 54912 
920-831-0300 
920-831-0165 (fax) 
mbrown@pbclaw.com  
 
Vonda K. Vandaveer 
V.K. Vandaveer, P.L.L.C. 
P.O. Box 27317  
Washington, DC 20038-7317  
202-340-1215 
202-521-0599 (fax) 
atty@vkvlaw.com   
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<> Labor Condition
Application for II-18

U.S. Department of Labor
Employment and Training Administration

, Form ETA 9035E
OMB Approval: 1205-03 l0

&H-lBI Nonimmigrants iration Date: 30 NOV 2008

E,LECTRONIC FILING OF' LABOR CONDITION APPLICATION
FOR THE II.TB NONIM1VIIGRANT VISA PROGRAM

This Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration (ETA)' electronic

filing system enables an ernployer to file a Labor Condition Application (LCA) and obtain

certilication of th; LCA. This Form must be subrnitted by the employer or by someone

authorized to act on behalf of the employer.

A.) I understand and agree that, upon iny receipt of ETA's certification of the LCA by electronic

response to my submission, I must take the following actions at the specified times and

circutnstances:
r print oui and sign a hardcopy of the electronically filed and certified LCA;

r maintain a signed hardcopy of this LCA in rny public access file;
r submit a signed hardcopy of this LCA to the Immigration and Naturalization Service in

support ofthe I-129, on the date ofsubmission olthe I-129; and

. provide a signed hardcopy of this LCA to each H-18 nonimmigrant who is employed

pursuant to the LCA.
OYes ONo

B.) I understand and agree that, by filing tlre LCA electronically, I am attesting thal all of the

stalements in the LCA are true and accurate and that J arn undertaking all the obligations that are

set out in the LCA (Fonn ETA 9035E) and the accompanying instntctions (Form ETA 9035CP).

OY.s ONo

C.) I hereby choose one of the following options, with regard to the accompanying inskuctions:

O I choose to have the Form ETA-9035CP electronically attached to the certified LCA,

and to be bound by the LCA obligations as explained in this fomr;

O I choose not to have the Fonn ETA-9035TP electronically atfached to the certified

LCA, but I have read the instructions and I understand that I am bound by the LCA obligations as

expiained in this Form.

FORM CERTIFIEI)
ETA Case Number 1'06205-2716099 Form ETA 9035E - Page I of4
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<> Labor Condition U.S. Department of L4bor
Applicatiorr for H-18 Ernplo.,rynent a;d Training Administration
&H-lBl Nonimmigrants

Form ETA 9035E
OMB Approval: 1205-0310

A. Program Designation
You frust choose one: @ U-fn

Expiration Date: 30 NOV 2008

O H-ler chile OH-fsr singapore Cs*: Australian

B. Employer's Information
2, Ernployer's Full Legal Name

MARLABS, INC

3. Enrployer's Address (Number and Street)

2025 LINCOTN HIGIIWAY

SUITE ].],0

Employer's City
EDISON

Employer's Address EIN Number

s4-L8L6287

l. Return Fax Numbet

6. Ernployer's Phone Number

(855) 627 -s22't

State ZiplPostal Code

NJ 0 8 8l-7

Extension

4.

Rate of Pay

Wage Rate (or Rate From) (Required):

960, 000 . o0

2. Rate Up To (Optional):

$90,000.00

4. Is this position
part-time?

t-.-] iOYes l

L

IrDmo 
I

i*____l

Please Note:
Part-time hours
worked by
nonimmigrant(s) will
be in the range of
hours stated on the
INS Form(s) I-129.

D. Period Of Employment and Occupation

l. Begin Date

o7 /25/20A6

2. End Date

07 /2512009

5. JoLrTitle

PROGRAUMER/A}'IALYST

Information

3. Occupational Code

EE]T
4. Number of H-lB or H- lBl Nonimmigrants

rrE

E.

l

lnformation relating to Work Location for the H-lB or H-lBl Nonimrnigrants

City

ATLENTOWN

3. Wage is Per:

l) vear

io
I

lo
I

2. Prevailing Wage

$57,720.00

5.
Month

Q week

Q Hour

State

PA

4. Wage Source
.=-'----'--- |{ )SESA I-l

Col I ecr.iva I

O earqaininq I

i Agreement 
i

I

l(D otner l
!-i

Year Source Published

2005

Other Wage Source

OBS Wage Data

Weeks2

FORM CERTIFIED
ETA Case Number l-06205-27i 6099 Form ETA S035E - Page 2 of4
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^2*t Labor Condition U.S. Department of Labor ^- _ Form ETA.9$_|P^.
<V anpngJi_o.n for H-lB Emptor,rment und Training Aclministrarion oil,IB Appror,'al: 1205-0310

- &H-t nt Noni*rigr"nt. - B*pirution lut., lO

L City

2. Prevailing Wage

5. Year Source Published

6- Other Wage Source

State

l. Wage is Per:

i(^) Yeartv

ig t",'.n
Q week

Q Hour

-_,*_J

F. Employer Labor Condition Statements
please Note: In order for your application to be processed, you MUST read section E of the Labor Condition Application

cover pages under the heading " Employer Labor Condition Statements" and agree to all four labor condition staternents

summarized below:
(l) Wages: Pay nonimmigrants at least the local prevailing wage or the employer's actual wage, whichever is higher, and pay lor

nqn-productive time. Offer nonimrnigrants benefits on the satne basis as U.S. workers.

(2) Working Conditions: Provide working conditions for nonimmigrants which will not adversely affeci the working conditions of
workers similarly employed.

(3) Strit<e, Lockout, or Work Stoppage: No snike or lockout in the occupational classification at the place of employment,

(4) Notice: Notice to union or to workers at the place of employrnent. A copy of this form to H-lB or H-l81 workers.

I have read and agree to Employer Labor Condition Statements 1, 2, 3, and 4 as e ves
set forth in Section E of the Labor Condition Application Cover Pages. ONO

F-1. Additional Employer Labor Condition Statements - H-lB Employers Only
Please Note: In orderfor an application regardittg H-I8 nonimmigranls to be prccessed, yoa MUST read Section F-l '
Subsections J nnd 2 ofthe Labor Condition Applicalion cover pages under the heading "Additional Enzployer Lahor Condition

Slatements,, and choose one of the 3 alternatives (A, B, or C) Iisted belav in Subseclion I' If you marh Alternative B, you

MIIST read Seetion F-I - Subsection 2 ofthe cover pages under lhe heoding "Additional Employet Labor Condilion

Siaiements" and indiaate yailf agreemerxt to all 3 oddilianal statemenls sammarized helop in Subsection 2.

L Subsection I
Choose ONE of the following 3 altematives:

A C) Employer is not H-IB dependent and is not a

willful violator.

B O Employer is H-lB dependent and/or a willful
violator.

c (D Employer is H-tB dependent and/or a willful
violator BUT will use this application ONI-Y to
support H-l8 petitions for exemPt
nonimmigrants.

2. Subsection 2
IfAltemative B in Subsection I is marked, the following
Additional Labor Condition Statements are applicable:

A. Displacement: Non-displacement of the U.S. workers in
employer's rvork forcel

B. Secondary Displacement: Non-displacenrent of U.S.
workers in anolher employer's work forcel and

C. Recruitment and Hiring: Recruitmeat of U.S. workers and
biring of U.S. worker applicant(s) who are equally or
better qualified than the H-18 nonimmigrant(s).

! ha"e read and agree to Additional Labor
Conditiott Sratuments 2 A, B, ai,d i, C) res O wo

- sssa I- 
"oo"*" I

f) Banairhnq I

- aq#.*-i I

I

Q ortrer Il;;""."

FORM CERTIFIED
ETACaseNurnber l-06205-27J6099 Form ETA 9035E - Page 3 of4
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_/_tl Labor Condition U.S. Departrnent of Labor FormETA 9035ESV 
tt#H"ifi:jill;;,u"",. Employmenl and rrainins Administration $Xf_tlffi:fl. fitijit;r,

G. Public Disclosure Inforrnation

Putrlic disclosure information will be kept at:

O Employer's principal place of business

O Place of employment

H. Declaration of Employer

By signing this form, I, on behalf of the employer, attest that the information and labor condition statements provided are
true and accurate; that I have read the sections E and F ofthe cover pages {Form ETA 9035CP), and that I agree to comply
with the Labor Condition Statements as set forth in the cover pages and with the Department of Labor regulations {e0 CFR
part 655, Subparts H and I). I agree to make this applicaton, supporting documentation, and other records, available to
oflicials of the Department of Labor upoil request during any investigation under the Immigration and Nationality Act.

t- First Name of Hiring or Other Designated Official

SONA

Last Name of Hiring or Other Designated Official

PATEL

,t
5 Date t lp+10(ltl

Making fraudulent representations on this Form
can lead to civil or crimiral action under f 8 U.S,C.
1001, l8 U.S.C. 1546, or other provisions of law.

MI

I

3. Hiring or Other Designated Official Title

ASSOCIATL COUNSET

- Do NOT let signature extend beyond ihe box

I. Contact Information

l. Contact First Name

SONA

MI

I
1 Contact Last Narne

PATEL

Contact Phone Number
(865) 627-5227

Extension

150 0

J. U.S. Government Agency Use .,{ii
j.. .i!t:

i' ri

)9 i:

..t*'

"..: ,i
':J ;41
'&i.fi0

By virtue of my signature below, I

Date 07 /25 /

gnature and Title horized

re Department of Labor is not the

this applicatiiih*tiitiQ,e. d for
..;:''-r::ir",:1i,,.'lt,r:..

a7 /2

ETA Case

4 / 2A06

1:i
,,:i- ,ij;ii- .;,1'..,{i.'. 4tfr'

ofthe accuracy, truthf"lliess, or adequary ofa certifiCti'labor condition application.

K. Complaints
Complaints alleging misrepresentation of materiai facts in the labor condiiion application and/or failure to comply with the ter'rs of the labor
condition application may be liled with any office of the Wage and Hour Division, U.S, Department of Labor. Complaints alleging failure to
offer employment to an equally or better qualified U.S. worker, or an employet's misrepresentation regarding such offer{s) of employment, may
be filed with: U.S Department of Justice * Office of the Special Counsel * l0th St. and Constitution Ave, NW * Washington, DC " 20530.

FORM CERTIFIED
ETA Case Number l-06205-2716099 Form ETA 9035E - Page 4 of 4
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